
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services, Democratic Services (01254) 

380116/380109/380184 
Email: memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 11 September 2019 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 19 September 2019 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor June Harrison (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, Tony Dobson, 
Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, 
Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson OBE, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 18) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 4th July 2019 
(attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time   
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 19 - 30) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 17th July 2019 (attached). 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will move the Minutes, the Deputy Leader of the 
Council will second the Minutes. 

 Non-executive Members will be invited to make comment or ask questions on the 
Minutes (5 Minutes). 

 Cabinet Members will be invited to make comments and respond to any points 
raised (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will be given up to 15 Minutes to respond and to 
answer any questions raised. 

 

7.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 31 - 56) 
 
To receive the Minutes of committees, as set out below: 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minutes as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue from the Minutes; the Chair of the relevant 
Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 

Meeting (Municipal Year 2019/20) Date 

Planning Committee 12th June 2019 

Licensing Sub Committee 3rd July 2019 

Planning (Trees) Sub Committee 10th July 2019 

Planning Committee 10th July 2019 

Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

11th July 2019 

Audit Committee 29th July 2019 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

30th July 2019 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire and 
Hackney Carriage Licensing) 

31st July 2019 

 

8.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice  (Pages 57 - 62) 
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9. 
 

 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Thursday, 4th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor June Harrison (Mayor), Councillors Addison, Josh Allen, 

Mohammad Ayub, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, Stephen Button, 
Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Stephanie Haworth, Abdul Khan, 
Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, 
Tim O'Kane, Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson OBE, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Noordad Aziz, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn and Kate Walsh 

  

 
40 Apologies for absence 

 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Noordad Aziz, 
Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn and Kate Walsh. 
 

41 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 

There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

42 Announcements 
 

1) The Late Chris Reid and Mike Chambers 
 
The Mayor paid tribute to former Councillor Chris Reid and former Chief Executive 
Mr Mike Chambers, who had passed away last month. 
 
Former Labour councillor, Chris Reid, had passed away on Friday 14th June 2019, 
aged 63 years.  Chris had attended Royal Blackburn Hospital for a routine operation 
in May, but later developed pneumonia, from which sadly he did not recover. 
 
Mr Reid, from Great Harwood, served as Netherton ward councillor in the town for 
eight years, from 1990 until 1998, and was a ‘passionate’ NHS activist.  He was 
born in Dublin and previously lived in Accrington before moving to Great Harwood in 
1986. 
 
He helped lead the recent Save Accrington Victoria Walk-in Centre campaign, was 
chair of the Great Harwood Patients Participation Group and was previously a 
Labour Group secretary and local party secretary as well as being an Accrington 
Stanley season ticket holder.  He had worked as a driver on Hyndburn Transport 
and then as a truck driver. 
 
He was good husband to his wife, Ruth, and a father and grandfather of five. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Mike Chambers had passed away on Friday 21st June 2019.  Mike was 62, and had 
been diagnosed in August with a Brain tumour.  He passed away peacefully at 
home with his family – Caroline, Tom and Lettie. 
 
Mr Chambers was Chief Executive of Hyndburn Borough Council from 1995 to 
2003, prior to the current Chief Executive, Mr Welsby, taking up the post.  He was a 
dedicated local government officer and served the people of Hyndburn faithfully.  
Away from work, Mr Chambers was a keen mountaineer. 
 
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE, and Councillors Abdul 
Khan, Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, Jean Battle, Tim O’Kane and Judith Addison also 
added their tributes. 
 
A minute’s silence was held as a mark of respect. 
 
2) Queen’s Birthday Honours 
 
The Mayor reported that the Council had recently received the marvellous news that 
two of its councillors had been recognised in the Queen’s Birthday Honours List, 
published on Saturday 8th June 2019. 
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson had been awarded Officer of the Order of the British 
Empire (OBE), for political service. 
 
Councillor Munsif Dad JP had been awarded Medallist of the Order of the British 
Empire (BEM), for political service. 
 
The Mayor presented a framed Certificate of Record and a copy of the Official 
Public Record from the London Gazette to each councillor.  The Chamber was filled 
with applause. 
 
Councillors Miles Parkinson OBE and Munsif Dad BEM JP spoke about their 
introduction to public life, some memorable experiences and the support they had 
received from their families. 
 
3) Recent Events 
 
The Mayor reported that, since her appointment to office, she had attended 
numerous wonderful events along with the Mayoress.  It was not possible to do 
justice to them all by mentioning them at the meeting.  However, the following 
deserved a special mention:- 
 
The Accrington Carnival, which had taken place on Sunday 23rd June, was a 
spectacular occasion, with crowds lining the route of the procession and flocking to 
the many attractions on the new Town Square and on Broadway.  The weather was 
kind and the Mayor and Mayoress enjoyed a ride in the open air at the rear of a 
vintage-style limousine.  Both the Mayor and Mayoress had lovely time and it was 
hoped that other councillors, residents and visitors alike enjoyed the day too. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

The Mayor thanked the organisers for their hard work in planning and running the 
event and all those who participated, for making the event such a success.  The 
Mayor indicated that she was looking forward to the next Carnival in 2021.  The 
Leader of the Council added his thanks to all concerned. 
 
The following day had seen the start of Armed Forces Week and the Mayor had 
been proud to be presented with the Armed Forces Day Flag by the Lord-
Lieutenant, Mr Charles Hadcock, DL, at a ceremony in front of Accrington Town 
Hall.  The event marked Hyndburn’s support for past, present and future Armed 
Forces.  It was the Borough’s chance to celebrate and thank its Armed Forces and 
show its support for all they do to protect people and keep the country safe. 
 
The end of that week was also marked by a short ceremony on Monday 1st July, in 
Church Street Gardens, to commemorate the anniversary of the start the Battle of 
the Somme and the sacrifice made by the Accrington Pals and so many others 
during that campaign.  They would always be remembered. 
 
4) Accrington Pals Memorial 
 
The Leader of the Council indicated that he had recently been contacted by Colonel 
Geoffrey Norton (retired), an expert historian on the Pals battalions, about a 
fundraising effort for a footpath to the Sheffield Memorial Park near Serre-lès-
Puisieux, Pas-de-Calais, France.  The park is the site of the Accrington Pals 
Memorial and various other memorials and is close to several cemeteries containing 
war graves with links to Lancashire and Yorkshire.  Some £20k has already been 
raised towards the cost of the footpath and Hyndburn Borough Council intends to 
make a contribution to the cost, alongside funding from the local French Mayor. 
 
5) Civic Sunday 
 
The Mayor reported that a Civic Sunday event was due to be held at 2:00pm on 21st 
July 2019, at St Anne’s Catholic Church, Cobham Road, Accrington.  All councillors 
and members of the public were welcome to attend. 
 
6) Long Service Award - Councillor Jean Battle 
 
The Leader of the Council reported that Councillor Jean Battle had recently 
achieved 20 years service with the Council.  Accordingly, her name would be added 
to the commemorative board at the Town Hall.  He congratulated her and recounted 
that she had served on numerous different committees during this time and had 
represented several different wards with distinction. 
 
 

43 Confirmation of Minutes 
 

The minutes of the Council meetings held on 16th and 25th May 2019 were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Resolved - That the Minutes of the Council meetings held 
on 16th and 25th May 2019 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
 

44 Question Time 
 

The Mayor reported that the following question had been received from a member 
of the public, Mr Ian Robinson, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi).  
The question was put to the Leader of the Council. 
 
“After my recent disappointment in planning regarding my application for Glamping 
cabins in Great-Harwood. Refused. 
 
I would like a survey of Hyndburn Borough Council in the chamber by recorded 
show of hands, if they thought my brilliant idea of Glamping (the first one in 
Hyndburn) is a good one.  Irrespective of greenbelt as this is being reviewed as we 
speak.  One of the reasons I went forward with this was the review highlighted the 
possibility of removing my land from the greenbelt. 
 
And I do believe that the planners are negotiating building 400 houses on the 
adjacent field to mine including my land.  As we speak I am waiting for an offer to 
sell.” 
 
The Leader of the Council thanked Mr Robinson for his question and responded as 
follows:- 
 
Firstly on the technical point, it is not possible for a member of the public to ask 
Council for a recorded vote or show of hands.  The Council’s Standing Orders do 
not permit this and there is a good reason for this, which leads into the second 
point.  
 
There is no motion or recommendation before the Council on which members can 
vote.  Members cannot be asked to vote on anything unless they know the detail of 
what they are voting for. 
 
The Leader of the Council expressed a view that he believed that most councillors 
would not object to glamping in itself or as an issue of principle.  Everything 
depends on the context.  Something that is acceptable to Members and welcomed 
in one location, may be totally unacceptable if situated somewhere else. 
 
Under the circumstances, Council should not be asked to usurp or influence the 
work of the Planning Committee.  When that Committee considered Mr Robinson’s 
application for planning permission, it did so with the benefit of a full report setting 
out the legal and policy considerations relevant to the decision, together with the 
planning officer’s advice.  A decision has now been made on the application and 
planning law prescribes the routes available to Mr Robinson if he is dissatisfied with 
the Committee’s decision. 
 

45 Changes of Appointments to Committees 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

A report was considered requesting a change to be made to the appointments to 
Committees for 2019/20 to accommodate the wishes of the Conservative Group.  
Approval was sought to the appointment of Councillor Patrick McGinley in place of 
Councillor Josh Allen within the Conservative Group appointments to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Resolved - That approval be granted to the appointment of 

Councillor Patrick McGinley in place of 
Councillor Josh Allen within the Conservative 
Group appointments to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
with immediate effect. 

 
46 APPG Definition on Islamophobia 

 

The Leader of the Council submitted a report proposing that the Council adopts the 
Definition of Islamophobia agreed by the All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on 
British Muslims.  The APPG had published its Definition of Islamophobia last 
December, based on extensive consultation.  It read: 
 
“Islamophobia is rooted in racism and is a type of racism that targets expressions of 
Muslimness or perceived Muslimness.” 
 
Councillors Judith Addison, Munsif Dad, Jean Battle, Abdul Khan, Mohammad 
Ayub, Stewart Eaves and Glen Harrison spoke in support of this proposal and 
warned of the negative impact of religious intolerance and extremism on community 
cohesion.  Councillor Ayub indicated that the decision was particularly timely, since 
next week marked the Memorial Week of the Srebrenica massacre and events were 
being held within the local Muslim community, including an event on Monday 8th 
July 2019 at the Razid Jamia Masjid Mosque’s Community Centre. 
 
Resolved - That the Council agrees to adopt the All-Party 

Parliamentary Group (APPG) on British 
Muslims’ Definition on Islamophobia and 
ensures that this is reflected in its Equality and 
Diversity Scheme and other relevant policies. 

 
47 Minutes of Cabinet 

 

The minutes of the meetings of Cabinet held on 20th March and 5th June 2019 were 
submitted. 
 
The following issues were raised from the minutes: 
 
Cabinet Meeting, 20th March 2019 – Minute 353, Minute of Boards, Panels and 
Working Groups – Councillor Judith Addison, referred to the Disabled Facilities 
Grant process, and related the story of one resident who had experienced 
significant barriers to being able to access the grant.  It had been recommended by 
the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee in February 2019 to establish a 
cross party Working Group to look at resolving any issues associated with the 
grants process.  However, no further information had been provided on this matter. 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

 
The Leader of the Council responded that he would be pleased to look into the 
issue of a cross party Working Group for the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG).  
However, the policy was currently being reviewed.  A presentation had been given 
to Cabinet members recently, which had highlighted the opportunities to use 
increased DFG funding in a more responsive way. 
 
Cabinet Meeting, 5th June 2019 – Minute 24, Accrington and Rossendale and 
Nelson and Colne Colleges – Councillor Judith Addison expressed disappointment 
that the presentation by Amanda Melton, Chief Executive of the two colleges, had 
not been made to the whole Council, as the content of the presentation had been 
extremely interesting.  An undertaking had been given to hold a future meeting with 
Cabinet Members at Accrington and Rossendale College.  She asked if all 
councillors could be invited to participate in that visit. 
 
The Leader of the Council responded that it should be possible to facilitate the 
involvement of all councillors in any future visit. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Councillor Sara Britcliffe referred to an e-mail that she had received some time ago 
in connection with a meeting about the Accrington Arndale Centre.  She asked if the 
proposed meeting had now taken place and, if so, what was the outcome.  
 
The Leader of the Council responded that the first meeting planned had been 
cancelled, and by the time a second meeting had been arranged a serious legal 
matter had arisen.  He issue had still not been resolved and, as a consequence, it 
would not be appropriate at this stage to hold a meeting.  Once the legal issues had 
been resolved the meeting would go ahead. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

48 Minutes of Committees 
 

The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 
 
COMMITTEE DATE 

Audit Committee 11th March 2019 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Call-In) 14th March 2019 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licensing) 20th March 2019 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21st March 2019  

Planning (Trees) Sub Committee 4th April 2019 

Management Review Committee 10th April 2019 

Planning Committee 24th April 2019 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

49 Motion(s) submitted on Notice 
 

1) Notice Submitted on Motion – M65 
 
The following motion submitted by Councillor Noordad Aziz was moved by 
Councillor Munsif Dad and seconded by Councillor Stewart Eaves under Council 
Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this Council resolves to write to Highways England and Transport for the 
North in relation to the consultation currently being undertaken in relation to the 
M65.  We in Hyndburn have been at the forefront of making the case for the M65 to 
link into Yorkshire and the A1(M).  We also attach in the letter the past motions 
related to the M65 to highlight the unanimity of support from within the council 
chambers for better infrastructure in the region.  We in Hyndburn wholeheartedly 
support a complete link up from M65 to the A1(M) allowing East Lancashire to 
access regional economic centres, airport and ports more easily and efficiently. 
 
Better road links and infrastructure from this area will promote economic and social 
mobility by allowing improving access and adding capacity on the Road network in 
the North especially East-West Connectivity.  A number of examples are outlined 
below: 
 
1. For Hyndburn both the nearest International Airports from Accrington, 
Manchester International Airport and Leeds Bradford International Airport are 
almost equidistant but the average commute time is almost 66% greater for Leeds 
Bradford compared to Manchester. This restricts access for commuters in East 
Lancashire and leads to normally incurring a premium to use Manchester Airport.  
Leeds Bradford has plans to increase passenger numbers to 7 million from the 
current 4 million and that can only be achieved with better links from East 
Lancashire and the upgrade of the M65 to link into Yorkshire. 
 
2. Access to more high skilled jobs from East Lancashire region.  The number 
of high skilled jobs have eroded as the industry has declined in the area.  The M65 
link will allow access to large corporates as well as access to Leeds, the largest 
Financial Services Sector in the United Kingdom outside Canary Wharf worth an 
estimated £2.1bn.  This will allow commutable time to be around 1hr.  This 
improved accessibility will allow East Lancashire to attempt to stem the Brain Drain, 
where it loses its best and brightest to the economic centres due to limited career 
prospects in the region. 
 
3. The M65 Link to Yorkshire will give access to new markets for businesses 
based in East Lancashire as well more efficient routes to the ports on the east 
coast.  Road Freight from East Lancashire is limited to the congested M62 or 
country roads along the A59.  Neither is fit for purpose and are operating at full 
capacity throughout the day.  Companies in the area like Emerson & Renwick, 
Senator, Simon Jersey, Exertis and Wham to name a few based out of Lancashire 
would benefit significantly due better access improving East-West Connectivity.  

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

The new Frontier Park development in Hyndburn would have a multiplier effect with 
better connectivity of the M65. 
 
4. Unlock potential and regenerate some of the most deprived areas in the 
United Kingdom.  On the current M65 sit some of the most deprived communities in 
the UK.  Better connectivity from the area of the M65 would attract inward 
investment into these areas thereby creating regeneration within these communities 
as well as the establishment of new industry using the strength and knowledge of 
the area in the Manufacturing sector. 
 
To summarise, the opportunity for the M65 to link into Yorkshire to improve East-
West Connectivity is a once in a lifetime opportunity and it can act as a driver to 
transform the whole of East Lancashire and positively drive economic development 
and social mobility.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council resolves to write to Highways 

England and Transport for the North in relation 
to the consultation currently being undertaken 
in relation to the M65, on the basis that 
Hyndburn has been at the forefront of making 
the case for the M65 to link into Yorkshire and 
the A1(M) 

 
(2) That this Council also attaches to the letter the 

past motions relating to the M65 to highlight the 
unanimity of support from within the council 
chambers for better infrastructure in the region. 

 
(3) That the letter should express the view that we 

in Hyndburn wholeheartedly support a complete 
link up from M65 to the A1(M) allowing East 
Lancashire to access regional economic 
centres, airport and ports more easily and 
efficiently. 

 
2) Notice Submitted on Motion – Power Up The North 
 
The following motion submitted by Councillor Noordad Aziz was moved by 
Councillor Munsif Dad and seconded, in the absence of Councillor Kate Walsh, by 
Councillor Loraine Cox under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this Council recognises the campaign launched in June 2019 by media outlets 
across the North titled Power Up The North.  The north-south divide is not new, but 
after nearly a decade of austerity and many more of London-centric control, it is 
time to acknowledge the disparity between the North and South especially when it 
comes to infrastructure investment as well as the ability and capacity to attract 
inward investment and the earning capacity. 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
9 

We therefore resolve to add our support to the campaign as well as writing to the 
government asking for an end to austerity and a commitment to an investment 
programme in significant transport infrastructure, in education and up-skilling, and in 
renewal and regeneration to drive Hyndburn and the North forward.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council recognises the campaign 

launched in June 2019 by media outlets across 
the North titled Power Up The North and 
believes that it is time to acknowledge the 
disparity between the North and South, 
especially when it comes to infrastructure 
investment as well as the ability and capacity to 
attract inward investment and the earning 
capacity. 

 
(2) This Council resolves to add its support to the 

campaign, as well as writing to the government 
asking for an end to austerity and a 
commitment to an investment programme in 
significant transport infrastructure, in education 
and up-skilling, and in renewal and regeneration 
to drive Hyndburn and the North forward. 

 
3) Notice Submitted on Motion – Free TV Licences for the Over 75s 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Glen Harrison and seconded by 
Councillor Steward Eaves under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“This Council recognises that social isolation is a distinct possibility for many of 
those in Hyndburn who fall into the category of having their free TV licences 
removed. 
 
For many Hyndburn Residents television is a means of interaction and contact with 
the wider world.  If this free TV licence is to be removed, this could also have 
consequences on their ability to afford such an extra cost, with the amount the 
government intend to save with this endeavour being small, but the impact 
potentially being significant.  
 
This Council proposes to write to the BBC and the Minister for Culture Media and 
Sports, calling for the Free TV licence for over 75s to remain.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote. In accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 16.5, six members present requested that a recorded vote be 
taken.  The votes were recorded as follows:- 
 
For the Motion: 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
10 

Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Jean Battle, Sara 
Britcliffe, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Tony 
Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, June 
Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Stephanie Haworth, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick 
McGinley, Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette 
Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales and Paddy 
Short. 
 
Against the Motion: 
 
None 
 
Abstentions: 
 
None 
 
The motion was therefore carried. 
 
Resolved (1) This Council recognises that social isolation is 

a distinct possibility for many of those in 
Hyndburn who fall into the category of having 
their free TV licences removed, since for many 
Hyndburn Residents television is a means of 
interaction and contact with the wider world. 

 
(2) This Council agrees to write to the BBC and the 

Minister for Culture Media and Sports, calling 
for the Free TV licence for over 75s to remain. 

 
4) Notice Submitted on Motion – Integrated Home Service Improvement 

Contracts 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Paul Cox and seconded by 
Councillor Steward Eaves under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“This Council notes with great concern that Lancashire County Council have agreed 
to end the integrated home service improvement contracts in 2020. 
 
We believe ending these will have a huge impact on Hyndburn residents who rely 
heavily on this service to live with independence, dignity and respect.  We are also 
concerned that the majority of these users are in a financially weak position and this 
will only make this situation worse.  Also the impact to the health service will far out 
way any short term saving cuts that are being made.  
 
We resolve to write to both the Leader of Lancashire County Council, County 
Councillor Geoff Driver, and the Rt Hon Matt Hancock, Secretary of State for Health 
and Social Care, and ask that both these Conservative administrations review these 
decisions and their impending effects on both the Health Service and Hyndburn 
residents.” 
 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
11 

After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) This Council notes with great concern that 

Lancashire County Council have agreed to end 
the integrated home service improvement 
contracts in 2020. 

 
(2) This Council believes that ending these 

contracts will have a huge impact on Hyndburn 
residents who rely heavily on this service to live 
with independence, dignity and respect; that the 
majority of these users are in a financially weak 
position and this will only make this situation 
worse; and that the impact to the health service 
will far out way any short term saving cuts that 
are being made. 

 
(3) This Council agrees to write to both the Leader 

of Lancashire County Council, County 
Councillor Geoff Driver and the Rt Hon Matt 
Hancock, Secretary of State for Health and 
Social Care, and asks that both these 
Conservative administrations review these 
decisions and their impending effects on both 
the Health Service and Hyndburn residents. 

 
5) Notice Submitted on Motion – Stanhill Road Motorway Bridge 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Glen Harrison and seconded by 
Councillor Chris Knight under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“This Council recognises that the state of mental health provision nationally is vastly 
underfunded which impacts on residents in Hyndburn. 
 
The motorway bridge on Stanhill Road over the M65 motorway had two suicide 
attempts in four days.  A multitude of incidents have occurred at that location since 
the bridge was first constructed, including youths throwing stones at oncoming 
traffic.  Shockingly Highways England believe that the railings at this bridge meet 
the required safety standards. 
 
This Council resolves to write to Highways England, recommending that works take 
place to raise the railings around this bridge which is yards from a children’s play 
area.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) This Council recognises that the state of mental 

health provision nationally is vastly 
underfunded which impacts on residents in 
Hyndburn. 

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 
12 

 
(2) This Council notes that the motorway bridge on 

Stanhill Road over the M65 motorway had two 
suicide attempts in four days and that a 
multitude of incidents have occurred at that 
location since the bridge was first constructed, 
including youths throwing stones at oncoming 
traffic, however, Highways England believe that 
the railings at this bridge meet the required 
safety standards. 

 
(3) This Council resolves to write to Highways 

England, recommending that works take place 
to raise the railings around this bridge which is 
yards from a children’s play area. 

 
6) Notice Submitted on Motion - Use of Herbicides and Pesticides 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Sara Britcliffe under Council 
Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That the Council review their use of herbicides and pesticides now, including and in 
particular the use of Glyphosate, and speak with other local Councils about how 
they have been able to stop using such chemicals around their Boroughs and also, 
continue to follow in the footsteps of other boroughs in becoming a pesticide free 
town.” 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule A12(a), Councillor Britcliffe sought to 
alter the written motion as follows:- 
 
After the words “...herbicides and pesticides…” delete the word “now,” and insert 
the words “and have it finished before next Spring” and after the words “…pesticide 
free town” insert the words “and look at planting of wildflower habitats on 
roundabouts, grass verges and disused land”. 
 
The consent of the meeting was not given to the alteration.  The original motion was 
then seconded by Councillor Josh Allen. 
 
The following amendment was moved by Councillor Paul Cox and seconded by the 
Leader of the Council:- 
 

 Delete the words “That the Council…” and substitute with “That Lancashire 
County Council…”; 

 Delete the words “…now, including…”; 

 Delete the words “the use of Glyphosate,…” and substitute “…the 
specification for Glyphosate on the highways and footpaths as stated within 
their Public Realm Agreement…”; 

 Delete the words “…about how they have been able to stop…” and substitute 
“…across Lancashire to see if they have stopped…”; and 

Page 16



 
 
 

 

 
13 

 Delete the “s” in “Boroughs” and the following words “…and also, continue to 
follow in the footsteps of other boroughs in becoming a pesticide free town”. 

 
The Mayor was of the view that the above constituted a valid amendment. 
 
Councillor Cox explained the reason for the proposed amendment which was 
because the pesticide used by Lancashire County Council on the highway 
comprised 92% of pesticide usage in the Borough, with only 8% of usage 
attributable to Hyndburn Borough Council. 
 
After a debate, the amendment was put to the vote and declared carried, 
whereupon it became the substantive motion, as follows:- 
 
“That Lancashire County Council review their use of herbicides and pesticides and 
in particular the specification for Glyphosate on the highways and footpaths as 
stated within their Public Realm Agreement and speak with other local Councils 
across Lancashire to see if they have stopped using such chemicals around their 
Borough.” 
 
The substantive motion was put to the vote without further debate and declared 
carried. 
 
Resolved - That this Council calls upon Lancashire County 

Council to review their use of herbicides and 
pesticides and in particular the specification for 
Glyphosate on the highways and footpaths as 
stated within their Public Realm Agreement and 
to speak with other local Councils across 
Lancashire to see if they have stopped using 
such chemicals around their Borough. 

 
The Mayor reminded Members that the next meeting of the Council was not until 
19th September 2019 and she wished all in attendance a pleasant summer and 
happy holiday for those going away. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 17th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox, 

Munsif Dad BEM JP, Joyce Plummer, Loraine Cox and Jenny Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson, Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth and 
Eamonn Higgins 

  

 
62 Apologies for Absence 

 

There were no apologies submitted. 
 

63 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 

There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

64 Minutes of Cabinet 
 

The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 5th June 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

65 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 

The minutes of the following meeting were submitted: 
 

 Cabinet Committee – Street Naming – 20 March 2019 

 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

66 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 

There were no reports provided by Cabinet Members present at the meeting. 
 

67 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 
 

The Leader of the Council reported that the Cabinet was requested to give 
consideration to and comment on the draft work programmes for Overview and 
Scrutiny for 2019/20. 
 
Approval of the Report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

At the beginning of each municipal year, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees each agree a work programme for the year.  The process for agreeing 
the work programme is set out in Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule C6(a). 
 
A draft work programme for each of the Committees was provided for comment.  
Following consideration by the Cabinet, the draft will be returned to both Scrutiny 
Committees along with any comments made.  The Scrutiny Committees will then 
approve a full programme which will be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet.  
Due to the timings of meetings this year it is proposed that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer will circulate any comments from Cabinet to Committee members, 
with a final programme being approved at the next meeting. 
 
The work programmes have been developed following consultation including: 
 

 Multiple emails to all Councillors; 

 Suggestions sought from all service managers; 

 Informal meeting with the Cabinet. 

 
Thirteen items were suggested by Councillors (including one item which was 
suggested separately by multiple Councillors).  Seven of these items have been 
added to the work programme. Of the remaining six, one has been marked as a 
possibility pending further information while the others have been rejected.  No 
items were submitted by Service Managers. 
 
A full list of items submitted by Councillors and reasons why they have been 
included / not included is provided in the main report.  However, a summary is 
shown below: 
 

Fly Tipping/Littering Included - Resources OSC 

Graffiti Included - Resources OSC 

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) Not included 

Council support for Voluntary 
Community and Faith Sector (VCFS) 
organisations 

Not included 

GPs lack of funding, recruiting new 
GPs, reduced working arrangements 

Not included 

Town Centre Events Included – Resources or Communities 
and Wellbeing OSC 

Homelessness referral scheme Not included 

Kingdom Included - Resources OSC 

New waste collection system Included - Resources OSC 

Hyndburn’s Recovery Process for 
Council Tax Arrears 

Included - Communities and Wellbeing 
OSC 

Universal Credit Included - Communities and Wellbeing 
OSC 

Taxi Licensing Not included 

Management of green space associated 
with new housing development 

Subject to further discussions with Chief 
Planning Officer 

 

Page 20



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Meetings with the chairs and vice chairs also took place, and items for the work 
programme were discussed and selected in accordance with the Criteria for 
Selecting Work Programme Items.  In addition, Cabinet members were invited to a 
work programme meeting with the chairs and vice chairs of both committees to put 
forward potential items. 
 
Items had been provisionally allocated to specific meetings.  However, these may 
be subject to change during the year, particularly where they involve the attendance 
of external and partner organisations. 
 
As in previous years, additional items can be added to the work programmes as the 
year progresses. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet notes the work programmes for the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees contained in the 
Appendix to the report. 

 
68 Housing Renewal Policy 

 

Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, reported on a 
proposed new Housing Renewal Policy.  In her introduction to the report Councillor 
Cox indicated that a cross-party working group would be established, reporting to 
the Regeneration and Housing Panel, to consider access to and the availability of 
Disabled Facilities Grants.  The Leader of the Council and Councillors Tony Dobson 
and Munsif Dad also spoke in favour of the proposals. 
 
Approval of the report was deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Regulatory Reform (England and Wales) (Housing Assistance) Order 2002 (the 
RRO) grants a general power on local authorities to provide “assistance” “in any 
form” “to any person”, to improve, repair, adapt or rebuild residential premises. 
 
The RRO reflects the view that it is primarily the responsibility of private sector 
owners to maintain their own property but it recognises that some owners, 
particularly the elderly and most vulnerable, do not have the necessary resources to 
repair or improve their homes.  Local authorities therefore, subject to resources, 
have an important role to play in providing assistance in these cases. 
 
Hyndburn has such a RRO Policy, or probably better described, a Housing Renewal 
Policy in place which was last reviewed in 2006.  
 
Following a review, a new Housing Renewal Policy is proposed, a copy of which 
was provided at Appendix 1 of the report.  The Policy identifies the forms of 
assistance, including financial assistance that will be available from the Council to 
assist vulnerable occupiers in all tenures including disabled people to improve or 

Page 21



 
 
 

 

 
4 

adapt their homes, the eligibility criteria for assistance and the terms upon which 
this assistance will be provided. 
 
Historically, the Council has utilised the Capital Programme to fund housing renewal 
activity.  Due to austerity measures including public sector funding cuts there is very 
little money now available to support housing renewal activity.  However, one area 
where funding is increasing is for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s).  In 2019/20 the 
Council is due to receive nearly £1m.  DFG funding forms part of, and is allocated 
through the Better Care Fund (BCF). This fund is allocated to upper tier authorities 
(i.e. Lancashire County Council) then passed onto the Districts under ring fencing 
arrangements and it is expected that health priorities will become more important in 
the way DFG funding is spent. 
 
RRO policies include the use of DFG funding, now allocated via the BCF as 
described above.  This now enables local authorities to use specific DFG funding for 
wider purposes.  Therefore, subject to an approved RRO, DFG funding can be used 
beyond mandatory DFG’s to support vulnerable households remaining in their 
existing homes.  There is, therefore, an opportunity to use the additional DFG 
funding to support wider measures, subject to a new RRO (Housing Renewal 
Policy). 
 
A summary of the key policy areas in the new Housing Renewal Policy is as follows: 
 

 Education and Encouragement; 

 Direct Financial Assistance, including: 

o Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s) up to £30,000; 

o Discretionary Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s); 

o Additional Assistance for Vulnerable Households, (subject to funding and 

liquid assets/savings not exceeding £25,000); 

o Facelift grants forming part of a housing renewal scheme to improve the 

appearance and exterior of a block of dwellings (subject to funding); 

o Relocation Assistance usually where demolition is proposed under a 

Council led regeneration scheme (subject to funding); 

o Empty Homes - to bring long term empty homes back into use (subject to 

funding); 

 Indirect Financial Assistance; and 

 Enforcement 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council is required to have a RRO Policy in place in order to provide various 
forms of housing assistance and, therefore, not having a Policy is not an option.  
The overall approach proposed is to provide housing assistance to the most 
vulnerable households across the Borough and those in greatest need. 
 

Page 22



 
 
 

 

 
5 

Resolved - That Hyndburn’s new Housing Renewal Policy 
attached at Appendix 1 to the report be approved. 

 
69 Workplace Cycle Pool Scheme 

 

Councillor Jenny Molineux, Portfolio Holder Health and Communities, reported on a 
proposal to implement a workplace cycle pool scheme.  The Leader of the Council 
also spoke in favour of the proposed scheme. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Access Fund Team at Lancashire County Council offers grants to businesses 
of up to a maximum of £5,000 which can fund schemes such as cycle 
parking/storage and/or promotion, walking or cycling promotion and awareness 
campaigns. 
 
An application was submitted for the grant during 2018 for 4 cycles, 2 standard 
cycles and 2 electric cycles. The grant was approved and the Council received 
£2,745 in order to purchase the cycles and equipment from a local retailer. 
 
The aim of the cycle pool is to encourage employees to use cycles for business use 
as an alternative to using their vehicles and also potentially to exercise at 
lunchtimes to improve health and wellbeing.  The benefits of this scheme would be 
that some journeys can be made more quickly with no need to locate parking, there 
are health benefits from the physical activity of cycling including reducing the risk of 
strokes, diabetes and stress which ultimately improves the health of the workforce 
and leads to fewer absences.  There would also be financial savings due to a 
reduction in car mileage expenses.  Cycling is more environmentally friendly, 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, contributing to improvements in air quality and 
reducing congestion. It also leads by example to our residents and businesses 
showing that the Council is committed to reducing harmful emissions and making 
greener travel choices. 
 
The report includes further information about: 
 

 Consultation; 

 Cycle Storage; 

 Cycle Pool Scheme Guidelines; 

 Cycle Maintenance; 

 Insurance; and 

 Training. 

 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved (1) That the implementation of a workplace cycle pool 

scheme as outlined in Appendix 1 of the report be 
approved. 

 

Page 23



 
 
 

 

 
6 

(2) That the cycle storage located at the Markets be 
relocated to Scaitcliffe House to provide secure 
cycle storage. 

 
70 Financial Position March  2019 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 

 

Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, reported on the financial 
spending of the Council up to the end of March 2019 and the financial outturn 
position for the Accounting Year 2018/19.  Members considered a table within the 
report, which set out the core financial details.  Councillor Marlene Haworth 
enquired about the future plans for the Market Hall and a response was provided by 
the Leader of the Council, in which he referred to the both Market Hall and the wider 
retail offer in Accrington town centre, as well as national trends.  Members 
considered the desirability of a cross-party approach to planning the future of 
Accrington town centre. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The spend for the financial year to the end of March 2019 is £10,593,544 compared 
to a Budget of £11,074,538 giving a positive variance of £481,000 over the year. 
 
Positive variances were achieved in most of the Council’s significant budget areas 
with only the Town Centre & Markets Budget and Regeneration & Property Services 
recording adverse variances of any notable size.  Service level details are 
summarised as follows: 
 
Environmental Services  
 
Food Safety reports that net expenditure will be £80,000 less than Budget by the 
year end. This is due to salary savings of £30,000, £27,000 of miscellaneous cost 
savings and additional extra income of £23,000. 
 
Waste Services reports a positive variance for the financial year of £270,000.  This 
is due to salary savings of £50,000, income up compared to Budget by £33,000 and 
miscellaneous savings of £84,000 plus other savings against budget of £103,000. 
  
The Parks & Cemeteries Service reports an adverse variance of £10,000.  This is 
due to a predicted shortfall on the Parks Budget of £49,000, stemming from £6,000 
of increased staff costs, as well as £22,000 of lost income on football pitch hire over 
the year, £4,000 of reduced income from Lancashire County Council as well as 
£10,000 less income from tree work, along with £7,000 of additional miscellaneous 
costs.  The Cemetery Service is predicting a net increase of income this year of 
£25,000 and £24,000 of savings on miscellaneous costs, less £10,000 of increased 
salary costs. 
 
The Town Centre & Market Budget shows an overall adverse variance of £130,000.  
This is attributable to the continuing economic pressures limiting the generation of 
funds from the Market Hall in Accrington by £182,000 compared to Budget and 

Page 24



 
 
 

 

 
7 

other income down £10,000, offset by £13,000 of salary savings and £49,000 of 
miscellaneous additional savings. 
 
Culture & Leisure Services 
 
Culture and Leisure Services are indicating a positive variance of £47,000, 
stemming from savings across operational budgets.  
 
Planning & Transportation  
 
Planning & Transportation are predicting an adverse variance for the year of 
£3,000.  This is due to a predicted shortfall in income compared to budget on 
Building Control of £65,000, additional staff cost in this area of £16,000 and £7,000 
of additional miscellaneous cost.  Elsewhere on the Budget there are £39,000 of 
staff savings and £41,000 of additional income and £5,000 of miscellaneous 
additional savings. 
 
Regeneration & Property Services 
 
Regeneration & Property Services reports a negative variance position for the year 
of £137,000, with income up by £93,000, offset by an extra £40,000 of salary costs 
and £95,000 of miscellaneous costs, plus £95,000 of additional emergency repairs 
and maintenance expenditure. 
  
Policy & Corporate Governance 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance reports a positive variance of £217,000.  This is 
due to £303,000 of salary savings predicted for the year, less £107,000 of corporate 
savings, increased income above budget of £279,000, savings on pension 
expenditure of £79,000, less £155,000 of additional Housing Benefit spend and 
£182,000 of increased miscellaneous expenditure.   
 
Non Service Items 
 
The current estimate for the year is a positive variance of £148,000. 
 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved – That Cabinet notes the report on the financial outturn 

position for the year ending 31st March 2019. 
 

71 Capital Report - Outturn 2018/19 
 

Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, reported on the financial 
spend on Capital Projects during 2018/19.  The full details of expenditure were 
provided in Appendix 1 of the report and a proposed list of changes to the 2019/20 
Capital Programme was shown at Appendix 2.  These will be funded from the 
amounts not spent but authorised in 2018/19. 
 

Page 25



 
 
 

 

 
8 

Councillor Tony Dobson enquired about waste recycling rates and the Leader of the 
Council and Councillor Paul Cox responded that these were due to be discussed by 
the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 2019/20.  Councillor Marlene 
Haworth enquired about the Harvey Street Garden Area project and the Executive 
Director (Environment) agreed to provide a written response.  Councillor Glen 
Harrison thanked the officers for their work in ensuring that nine of the Borough’s 
parks had achieved green Flag Status. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The outturn position for 2018/19 on Capital Expenditure shows a fifteenth year of 
major capital investment by the Council.  The overall investment by the Council in 
the year was just over £5.6m against an authorised maximum budget of £10.9m.  
The overall programme was underspent by £765,000 this year. 
 
The Council has received applications for net slippage of £1.41m comprising 
£4.52m of expenditure schemes moving from 2018/19 to 2019/20 and £3.11m of 
income. These will be submitted for approval to the Audit Committee in July 2019.  
 
The Council has maintained its prudent approach to Treasury Management during 
the year.  The Prudential Indictors demonstrate small positive movements between 
last year’s position and the outturn for this year. 
 
Figures reported are the latest available and may be subject to change in finalising 
the accounts or after the conclusion of the final accounts audit.  If the figures 
change significantly from those contained in this report an update on the overall 
position will be made to Cabinet at a later date. 
 
The Capital Programme for 2018/19 was approved by the Council on the 22nd 
February 2018.  The programme for 2018/19 outlined continuing major investment 
in the local community and in the Council’s key priorities. 
 
The report includes further details in respect of the following: 
 

 Record levels of investment; 

 Positive achievements in managing the programme within overall resources; 

 Two individual projects with significant underspends (purchase of wheeled 

bins and Rishton regeneration project); 

 One area of significant adverse variance (improvements to Rhyddings Park, 

Oswaldtwistle); 

 Monitoring and reporting processes; 

 Avoiding additional borrowing; 

 Funding sources; 

 Receipts; and 

 Treasury Management. 

 
Major high spots within the Capital Programme 2018/19 are as follows: 

Page 26



 
 
 

 

 
9 

 

 Work was completed on £2m Accrington Town Square redevelopment, 

extensively renovating and improving this area for community, retail and 

recreational use and highlighting the significant heritage of the buildings 

surrounding the main public realm within Hyndburn. 

 The Council completed its major £2m investment into Rhyddings Park 

extensively upgrading the facilities within the Park and restoring the Coach 

House and Kitchen Garden for community use. 

 The Council also invested almost £250,000 into Rishton as part of a major 

housing regeneration project. 

 The Council implemented a new recycling programme for paper, glass and 

plastics spending £1.2m on providing new recycling bins to residents to allow 

the easier disposal and collection of recycling materials and improve the 

tidiness of our streets.  It also replaced 4 of its key kerbside collection 

vehicles at a cost of £331,000. 

 New cremators were installed at Accrington Cemetery to replace the existing 

ones which were almost 25 years old and ensure this facility can operate 

success fully into the future. 

 The Council contributed £250,000 towards the major highway improvement 

to the M65’s Junction 7 and approach roads into Accrington to ease 

congestion into the Town Centre and improve traffic flow to Church and 

Oswaldtwistle. 

 The Council made Disabled Facility Grants awards of almost £675,000 to 

ensure that those who have an illness or disability can continue to live 

independent lives in their own homes, if they wish to do so. 

 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet notes the report and askes the Audit 

Committee to approve the Slippage items at 
Appendix 2 of the report. 

 
72 Financial Position May 2019 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2020 

 

Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, reported on financial 
spending of the Council up to the end of May 2019 and the financial forecast outturn 
position for the Accounting Year 2019/20.  Members considered a table within the 
report, which set out the core financial details.  Councillors also thanked the 
Corporate Management Team and the Deputy Chief Executive’s team for their work 
in maintaining the Council’s positive financial position. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 

Page 27



 
 
 

 

 
10 

 
The spend for the first 2 months of the financial year to the end of May 2019 is 
£1,790,959 compared to a Budget of £1,889,915 giving a positive variance of 
£99,000 over the first 2 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2020 is 
£10,850,000 compared to a Budget of £10,994,000.  This forecast produces a 
positive variance of £143,000.  There are small adverse variances for Planning & 
Transportation and Policy & Corporate Governance with a more significant adverse 
variance on Town Centre & Markets of £155,000.  These adverse variances are 
offset by predicted savings elsewhere on the Budget during the year.  Service level 
details are summarised as follows: 
 
Environmental Services  
 
Food Safety is predicting that net expenditure will be £4,000 less than Budget by 
the year end.  This is due to salary savings of £4,000. 
 
Waste Services are predicting a positive variance for the financial year of £87,000.  
This is due to Savings on the Recycling Budget of £103,000 and £16,000 of 
additional income compared to Budget less £31,000 of extra salary costs and 
£1,000 of additional miscellaneous expenditure.   
  
The Parks & Cemeteries Service is forecasting a break even outturn at this point in 
the year. 
 
The Town Centre & Market Budget shows an overall adverse variance of almost 
£155,000.  This is attributable to the continuing economic pressures limiting the 
generation of funds from the Market Hall in Accrington by £144,000 compared to 
Budget and other income down £9,000 and £4,000 of miscellaneous additional 
costs, offset by £2,000 of salary savings. 
 
Culture & Leisure Services 
 
Culture and Leisure Services are indicating a break even outturn position by the end 
of the year. 
  
Planning & Transportation  
 
Planning & Transportation are predicting an adverse variance for the year of 
£33,000.  This is due to a predicted shortfall in income compared to budget on 
Building Control of £65,000.  Elsewhere on the Budget there are £3,000 of staff 
saving and £48,000 of additional income less £19,000 of miscellaneous additional 
expenditure. 
 
Regeneration & Property Services 
 
Regeneration & Property Services are predicting a break even position by the year 
end with additional income of £157,000 offset by £144,000 of additional staff costs 
and £13,000 of additional miscellaneous spending. 

Page 28



 
 
 

 

 
11 

 
Policy & Corporate Governance 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance are predicting an adverse variance of £31,000.  
This is due to increased income above budget of £100,000 and £19,000 of savings 
on miscellaneous spending less a predicted £150,000 Housing Benefit spend.  
 
Non Service Items 
 
The current estimate for the year is a positive variance of £270,000. 
 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet notes the report and asks the Corporate 

Management Team to continue to identify savings 

and increase income over the coming year to boost 

the overall surplus of the Council. 
 

73 Exclusion of the Public 
 

There were no reports submitted under this heading. 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 12th June, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Dave Parkins (Vice 

Chair), Judith Addison, Stephen Button, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, 
Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, June Harrison, Abdul Khan, 
Patrick McGinley, Kate Walsh and Loraine Cox 
 

Apologies: Councillors Jean Battle, Kath Pratt and Paddy Short 

  

 
33 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Jean Battle, Kath Pratt and Paddy 
Short. 
 
Councillors Loraine Cox, Tony Dobson and June Harrison acted as substitute 
representatives for Councillors Battle, Pratt and Short. 
 
Councillors Patrick McGinley and Tony Dobson declared an interest in planning application 
11/19/0103, Land off Blackburn Old Road, Great Harwood as the applicant was a former 
member of the Hyndburn Conservative Association. 
 
Councillor Dave Parkins declared an interest in planning application 11/18/0473, Smith 
Acres, Back Lane, Baxenden as he knew the applicant and his family, and stated he had 
not expressed any view or opinion on the application. 
              
 

34 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 24th April 2019, were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

35 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved  - (1) (a) That the following planning application be refused  

subject to the conditions as per the report, that the proposal 
constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The proposal 
causes harm to openness of the Green Belt. The considerations in 
favour of development do not clearly outweigh the harm to the Green 
Belt and any other harm caused by the proposal. As such, the Very 
Special Circumstance test has not been met. The proposal is contrary 
to Policy BD1 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy, Policies DM15 and DM34 
of the Development Management Development Plan Document, 
Guidance Note 9 of the Development Management Development Plan 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7.



 
 
 

 

 
 

Document and the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, and:-   

 
- (b) That Enforcement Action be taken to remedy the breach of 
planning control that has taken place at the site.   

 
11/18/00473 Smith Acres, Back Lane, Baxenden, Accrington, BB5 2RE  
Change of use to create a family caravan site to provide 4 no pitches and 4 no day rooms 
to provide settled Gypsy and Traveller family accommodation and support the agricultural 
use of the land. (Part retrospective) 
 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to 

the extra information contained within the update report which was released before 
the meeting and related to the above planning application. 

 
2. Mr Mike Carr spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning application 
and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 

 
3. Baxenden Ward Councillor Kath Pratt spoke at the Committee in objection of the 
above planning application and in support of the Officer’s recommendation to refuse 
planning permission. 

 
Resolved  - (2) (a) That the following planning application be determined at the 

meeting following a request from the applicant to defer the application 
to a later date for additional information to be submitted, and:-   

 
- (b) That the following planning application be refused subject to the 
conditions as per the report, that the proposed development of 
glamping pods, roads and associated infrastructure would constitute 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and harm the openness. 
The applicant has not demonstrated that very special circumstances 
exist that outweigh the harm arising. For these reasons, the proposal is 
contrary to Policy Env6 and Env7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy, 
Policy DM34 of the Development Management DPD and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 
11/19/0103 Land off Blackburn Old Road, Great Harwood 
Outline Application: Proposed Glamping Site. 
(Resubmission of 11/18/0345) 
 
N.B. Mr Trevor Hobday spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 32



 

 
1 

 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 3rd July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer and 

Kath Pratt 
 

  

 
36 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

37 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29th November 2018 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting held on 29th November 2018 were submitted for approval. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

38 Licensing Hearing Procedure 
 
The Council’s Conduct of Hearings Procedure to be used in relation to a hearing required 
under the Licensing Act was submitted. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 
 

39 Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing - IBar, Accrington 
 
In accordance with the Hyndburn Borough Council Policy on the Conduct of Hearings and 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the Licensing Manager (Mrs. Redfern) 
advised the Licensing Sub-Committee of an application that had been received for the 
review of the premise licence issued in respect of the IBar, public house, Warner Street, 
Accrington, under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) by a responsible 
authority namely the Police Constable of Lancashire Constabulary.   
 
The copy of the Licensing Authority’s ‘Conduct of Hearings Procedure’ had been submitted 
earlier in the meeting.  
 
The Licensing Manager informed the Sub-Committee that the Police had reported 
numerous incidents at or in connection with the IBar and referred to the evidence supplied 
by the Police contained within the agenda.  She also referred the Sub-Committee to 
additional information supplied by Bravo Inns II Limited after the publication of the agenda:   

 a letter of support for the management of IBar from Councillor Dobson 

 a Statement on Behalf of Premises Licence Holder (Bravo Inns 2 Limited) 

 Proposed Changes to Operating Schedule 

 Premises Licence Holder Bundle of Documents. 
 
The Sub-Committee was requested to give consideration to the evidence provided by the 
Police and from their representatives in attendance at the meeting, Police Sergeant Gary 

Page 33



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Hennighan and Police Sergeant Simon Lynch.  P.S. Hennighan gave details of many 
incidents of crime and disorder, including CCTV evidence, linked to the IBar and evidence 
was also heard from P.S. Simon Lynch on breaches of licensing conditions.  The Police 
indicated that these incidents were associated with crime and disorder and public safety 
issues and linked to a breakdown of management at the premises.  He pointed out that the 
designated premises supervisor (DPS) of the IBar, at the time, was John Corbett who was 
rarely present on the premises.  The Sub-Committee was informed that Bravo Inns II had 
submitted an application for Kirsty Newton, current DPS at the Warner Arms, to become the 
new DPS at the IBar but the Police had objected to this application because they felt that 
she could not provide adequate management at two premises at the same time.   
 
The premise licence holder, Bravo Inns II Limited, were represented at the meeting by 
Michelle Hazelwood (Solicitor at John Gaunt Partners), Mr. Harvey Nurse (Director of Bravo 
Inns II Limited), Mark Knibbs (Area Manager) and Kirsty Newton (proposed DPS of IBar).  
Representations were made in response to the application for a review of the premise 
licence setting out the steps taken by Bravo Inns II Limited since the application for review 
had been submitted including a comprehensive pack of policies which had been put in 
place and a list of conditions which had been agreed by the Police.  The Sub-Committee 
were also made aware of plans to create a smoking area outside the premises, on an area 
of the curtilage of the premises.     
 
The Sub-Committee considered the application and representations made by the Police 
and Bravo Inns II Limited.  They took into account the statutory guidance pursuant to S 182 
of the Licensing Act and having made its findings then considered which of the steps set 
out in Section 52(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 should be taken to promote the Crime and 
Disorder and Public Safety Objectives.   

Resolved (1) That, having taken into account Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act and considered Section 52(4) of the 
Licensing Act 2003 to promote the Licensing Objectives 
relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and to 
promote public safety for the premises licence for the 
IBar, Warner Street, Accrington, the premise licence be 
suspended for a period of 3 months.  This will allow for 
rebranding in order to disassociate from the disorder 
associated with the current brand and to ensure that 
proper management and other measures are put in 
place, including the retraining of staff, and to ensure the 
licensing objectives are upheld; and 

 (2) That the premise licence holder also adds the 
conditions submitted at the hearing, as agreed between 
the premises licence holder and the Police, to the 
licence; 

 (3) That the following additional conditions are added to 
the premise licence: 

 1.   A personal licence holder must be present on the 
premises at all times that the premises is open for the 
sale of alcohol;  

  2. There shall be no entry or re-entry to the premises 
after 0200 hours on Monday – Thursday and 0300 hours 
Friday, Saturday and Sunday;  

Page 34



 
 
 

 

 
3 

  3. A designated premises supervisor to be responsible 
for this premises only. 

  and 

                               (4)  That the Sub-Committee also determined that there 
should be an amendment to the permitted times at the 
premises, as set out in the decision notice. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
PLANNING (TREES) SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 10th July, 2019 

 
Present:  
 
 

Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair),  
Councillors Addison, Jean Battle and Parkins 
 

Apologies Stewart Eaves and Eamonn Higgins 

  

 
50 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Stuart Eaves and Eamonn Higgins. 
 
Councillor Dave Parkins acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Higgins. 
 
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Eaves. 
  
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.         
 

51 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee held on the 4th April 2019, were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

52 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- New Tree Preservation Order(s) 
 
The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer and the Arboricultural & Conservation Officer 
submitted a report setting out recommended action on whether the temporary Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) that had been placed on the tree detailed below in April 2019 
should be made permanent. 
 
Walton Arms Pub, Burnley Road, Altham, BB5 5UL   
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer presented information and photographs of 
the tree and advised Members that an assessment of the tree had been undertaken and 
was included in the report attached to the agenda.  
 
Resolved  - (1) That the Temporary Tree Preservation Order be made  

permanent as per the Officer’s recommendation in the report. 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 10th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Addison, 

Jean Battle, Loraine Cox, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane, Parkins (Vice Chair), Bernadette Parkinson 
and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Kate Walsh and Kath Pratt 

 
Absent: 
 

 
Councillor Abdul Khan 

 
53 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, 
Kath Pratt and Kate Walsh. 
 
There was no apology for absence submitted by Councillor Abdul Khan. 
 
Councillors Loraine Cox, Tim O’Kane and Bernadette Parkinson acted as substitute 
representatives for Councillors Button, Eaves and Walsh. 
 
There was no substitute representatives for Councillors Khan and Pratt. 
  
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

54 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 12th June 2019, were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

55 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved - (1) That the following planning application be approved subject 

to the conditions as per the report:- 
 
11/19/0157 Norden High School and Sports Collage (Hyndburn Academy), Stourton 
Street, Rishton, BB1 4ED 
Erection of staff and visitor entrance and canopy, new glazing and glass doors and 
relocation of car park to rear and erection of new gates and fences. 
 
N.B. 1. Mr Nigel Airey spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning  

application and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning 
permission. 

Page 39



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
2. Ms Nicola Palmer spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning 
permission. 

 
3. Rishton Ward Councillor Kate Walsh spoke at the Committee in support of the 
above planning application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to 
approve planning permission, whilst adding possible suggestions to improve the 
application. 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 40



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Thursday, 11th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Kate Walsh, Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Addison, 
June Harrison and Patrick McGinley 
Co-optee: Doung Hayes 

  

  

Apologies: Bernard Dawson 
 

 
56 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Bernard Dawson, Co-optee. 
 

57 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no interests or dispensations declared at the meeting. 
 

58 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 21st March 2019 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on Thursday, 21st March 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct 
record. 
  
Resolved        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

59 Appointment of Co-optees 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees appointment of Co-optees made by Full Council on 16th May 
2019. 

Resolved (1) That the following re-appointment of Co-optees to the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted: 

     -  Honorary Alderman Paul Barton 
   -  Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod 
   -  Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 

 (2) That the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee re-appoint Honorary Freeman 
Bernard Dawson as Co-optee to the Community and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

                         (3)  That Committee noted the previous appointment of 
Honorary Alderman Doug Hayes as Co-optee to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, covering the Municipal Year 2019/20;  

Page 41



 
 
 

 

 
2 

                (4) That the Committee noted the amendment to Rule C2 of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in 
the appendix to the report; and  

                         (5) That the Committee noted the appointment of Gareth 
Molineux as new Co-optee to the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
60 Scrutiny Work Programme 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to approve the Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programmes for 2019/20, to be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet. 
 
The Chair informed the meeting that the Work Programme still had a slot free for the 
December Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and invited 
Members to submit any proposal for items for scrutiny.   
 
Councillor McGinley suggested that ‘Mental Health’ was added to the Work Programme and 
referred to a number of issues that had arisen locally and nationally that had had an impact 
on patients such as delays in seeking treatment and the location of the hospitals patients 
were being admitted to.  It was suggested that this issue had many depths to be considered 
and the Overview and Scrutiny Officer and the Chair agreed to consider adding this item to 
the Work Programme. 

Resolved (1) That the Work Programme for the Municipal Year 
2019/20 be approved subject to the addition of a 
proposed further item ‘Mental Health’ to be added to the 
Work Programme and any additional items raised 
during the year; and 

 (2) That the Work Programme for 2019/20 be submitted to 
the next meeting of Cabinet.    

  
 

61 Update on Scrutiny Statutory Guidance 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report and appended the New Statutory 
Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government. He reported that the Guidance 
offered ideas and a framework within which local scrutiny functions would need to find their 
own solutions.  He recommended that Members read the Guidance, attached as appendix 
1 to the report.    

Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 42



 
 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 29th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair), Councillors Tim O'Kane (Vice 

Chair), Addison, Chris Knight, Kath Pratt and Kate Walsh. 
 

Apologies Councillor Michael Miller, Stuart Sambrook and Helen Stevenson. 

  

 
74 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Michael Miller, Stuart Sambrook 
(Policy & Research Officer) and Helen Stevenson (Grant Thornton). 
 
Councillor Judith Addison acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Miller. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

75 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on the 11th March 2019 were submitted for approval.  
 
Resolved - That the minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record.  
 

76 Risk Management Monitoring Report 
 
The Head of Accountancy, David Donlan reported on behalf of the Policy and Research 
Officer to present a report which informed the Committee of the outcome of the review of 
the Generic, Strategic and Operational Risk Registers. 
 
There had been no major changes to the Strategic Risk Register but a number of minor 
changes had been made which were detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.  
 
There had been no major changes to the Generic Risk Register during the review period. 
 
There had been two major changes to the Operational Risk Register and a number of minor 
changes which were detailed in Appendix 2 of the report.  
 
A summary of all risks contained in the Generic, Operational and Strategic Risk Registers 
were detailed in Appendix 3 of the report. 
 
Councillor Chris Knight asked if the risk registers were available online for the general 
public to view and it was reported that whilst not a confidential document they were for 
internal purposes and not advertised on the website. 
 
The Chair asked why the new risk on the operational risk register concerning failure of 
primary and secondary air conditioning units in the server room had been added when it 
was a low risk. Background information was provided to the Committee as to why the risk 
had been added due to a number of factors. 
 

Page 43



 
 
 

 

 
 

Councillor Tim O’Kane question item 35 and failure to secure the development of the 
Clayton Triangle, although it was stated by Officers that this was just a title and more details 
were included in the register. 
 
Councillor Addison discussed item 27 and the risk of public injury as a result of unsafe 
headstones and memorials in cemeteries across the borough. She explained that with the 
place of worship in Church Kirk having closed, the graveyard was not maintained and 
located next to a new housing development. The Deputy Chief Executive reported that the 
Parks Department had the relevant insurances and equipment to provide safety 
assessments on this matter. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

77 Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion 2018/19 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations had submitted a report to inform and update Audit 
Committee on the Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion for 2018/19 and to give 
details on the performance of the Internal Audit Team and final outturn position for 2018/19. 
 
Appendix 1 provided a detailed summary to Members and reported that good levels of 
internal control were found to be in place and no significant areas of concern were found 
that could impact on the Council’s Financial Statements.  
 
The Audit Opinion for 2018/19 was classed as ‘’Substantial assurance’ which meant that 
work undertaken was generally conducted with a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet the service objectives. The controls in place are generally being applied 
consistently, however some weaknesses in the design and/or inconsistent application of 
controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
Each audit report issued was given an audit opinion on the issues identified and reported by 
internal audit. Table 2 of the report detailed the opinions and how many each was issued in 
2018/19.  
 
Table 3 of the report detailed the Satisfaction and Quality Questionnaire (S&QQ) results for 
2018/19 and included he comparative results for the preceding financial years. 
 
Table 4 of the report detailed internal audit performance for 2018/19 together with the two 
most recent financial years as a comparison. 
 
Table 5 showed an analysis on internal audit time during 2018/19 with the comparative 
figures for the previous 2 financial years. 
Whilst Table 6 detailed the work carried out by internal audit during 2019/19 and is based 
on actual time recorded against the original approved time allocated within the Audit Plan 
for 2018/19.  
 
Target coverage for the 2018/19 Audit Plan was 98% and 95.32% was achieved. Whilst the 
out-turn figure was not significantly below the actual target, the Head of Audit & 
Investigations had carried out additional calculations and established that had there been 
no sickness, special leave, compassionate leave and other leave then the out-turn figure for 
the year would have been 98.74% which would have been 0.74% above the target 
coverage. Therefore the 2019/20 Audit Plan coverage target remains at 98%.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

Page 44



 
 
 

 

 
 

78 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards- Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme 
 
The Head of Audit & Investigations informed members of the current position with the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) which set out how HBC manage 
any of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that are not compliant, thus 
ensuring conformance with the PSIAs overall. 
 
Appendix 1 of the report provided details on quality assurance issues for conformance with 
the standards along with elements of standards that are partially compliant or not yet 
compliant. 
 
Councillor O’ Kane commented on partner organisations and in the past the Council had a 
good working relationship with Hyndburn Homes. With Onward Homes having taken over 
the housing stock there was not the same agreements in place and the general public still 
viewed the properties ads Council owned housing. The Head of Audit & Investigations 
stated that Onward Homes received no support from the HBC Audit Department and that 
customer complaints had to be redirected back to Onward Homes.  
 
Councillor Addison reported it had taken 15th months of dialog to set up a communications 
channel with Onward Homes and Councillor Walsh added that properties in her ward had 
long term maintenance problems. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

79 Audit Reports & Key Issues- Progress Report for the Period February- June 2019 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of Audit Reports issued during the period February 2019 - June 2019 and bring 
to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were.  
 
It was reported there was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 
the current financial year in terms of audit days completed. The figures contained in the 
report gave updated details to the end of June 2019 (21.37% of the plan completed) and 
the projected out turn position for 2019/20 (85047% of the plan completed). 
 
A summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out between February- June 2019  
was attached to Appendix 1 of the report and detailedboth substantial audit assurance in 
the following areas:  
 

Substantial Assurance 

 Procurement arrangements 

 Bank reconciliation 

 Dog warden services 

 Markets 

 Land charges  
 
Councillor Walsh reported there was no direct way to contact the Dog Warden as the 
website redirected residents to general enquiries. Councillor Pratt questioned if the item 
should be referred to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Chair would 
ask for the item to be included in the work programme, if possible.  
 
Councillor O’Kane requested an update on the finance set aside for local authorities to deal 
with Brexit. The Deputy Chief Executive stated that the topic had been discussed at 

Page 45



 
 
 

 

 
 

Management Team although they were awaiting further information from central 
government now there had been a change in Prime Minister and the October deadline was 
approaching.  
 
Councillor Addison commented on procurement and was there a central purchasing 
process rather than it being done on an individual basis.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

80 Audit Follow-Ups Report for the Period March- June 2019 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee on the outcome of routine follow-ups following previous agreed action plans for 
completed Audit Records. The follow-ups detailed within the report were those carried out 
during the period March- June 2019. 
 
The information on the following follow-ups were carried out during the period March to 
June 2019 and were detailed within Appendix 1 of the report. 
 

 Internet and E-Mail 
4 actions agreed and 4 actions had been implemented 

 

 CCTV 
2 actions agreed and 2 actions had been implemented 

 

 Accounts Receivable 
4 actions agreed and 4 actions had been implemented 
 

Councillors O’Kane and Knight discussed junk emails and how best to deal with the issues 
whilst the Head of Audit and Investigations provided information on how different users 
across the authority have varying degrees of size limits allocated to their mail boxes.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

81 Audit Findings Report for Hyndburn Borough Council (Year ended 31 March 2019) 
Grant Thornton 
 
Grant Thornton submitted a report to inform members of the committee on the audit 
findings and highlighted the key findings arising from the statutory audit of HBC and the 
preparation of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 for 
those charged with governance. 
 
Andrew Smith of Grant Thornton communicated the headlines of the report and provided 
Members with a summary of details for each section, which included:  
 

 Significant findings- audit risks 

 Significant findings- other issues 

 Significant findings- key judgements & estimates 

 Significant findings- matters discussed with management 

 Significant findings- going concern 

 Other communication requirements 

 Other responsibilities under the code 

 Value for money 

 Independence and ethics 

Page 46



 
 
 

 

 
 

 Action plan 

 Follow up of prior year recommendations 

 Audit adjustments 

 Fees 
 
The report was explained with a summary of details for each section and Members 
provided comments during the presentation of all the information. 
 
The Chair on behalf of the Audit Committee thanked the Grant Thornton team for all the 
work undertaken and requested that a thank you be recorded in the minutes to the Deputy 
Chief Executive, Head of Accountancy and the HBC finance team for their work this year to 
meet the required deadlines. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

82 Statement of Accounts 2018/19 
 
The Head of Accountancy submitted a report to inform Members of the Audit Committee on 
the production of the annual accounts and their external audit and to deal with any issues 
arising from this work. 
 
The HBC statement of accounts was attached to the supplemental agenda as appendix A, 
along with a letter of representation from HBC to Grant Thornton (Appendix B) and the 
Capital Outturn report which contained slippage on the Capital Programme 2018/19 to 
2019/20 (Appendix C). 
 
The report submitted was to ensure the Council complies with its statutory duty to submit 
the audited accounts for 2018/19 by the 31st July 2019 deadline. 

 
Resolved - (1) That Audit Committee approved and signed the  

Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 (In Appendix A); 
and 
 

- (2) That Audit Committee approved and signed the letter of 
representation (In Appendix B); and 

  
- (3) That Audit Committee approved the slippage on the Capital 

Programme (In Appendix C); and  
  

-  (4) That Audit Committee noted the audit findings report 
produced by Grant Thornton (Agenda item 9). 

 
83 Time/Date/Venue of Next Meeting of Committee 

 
Resolved - That the next meeting of the Audit Committee be held on  

Monday 18th November 2019 at 5.00pm in Scaitcliffe House. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 48



 
 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 30th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Marlene Haworth, Patrick McGinley and Tim O'Kane 
Co-optees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson and Ian Ormerod 
  

In Attendance: Councillor Judith Addison 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure & Arts 
Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 
 
8 members of the Public, including: Mrs L. Allen, Mr N. Collingridge,  
Mrs G. Knight, Ms K. Whitehead, Mrs L. Wilson and one member of the 
media. 

  

 
84 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Terry Hurn. 
 
Councillor Marlene Haworth acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 
The Chair Councillor Noordad Aziz and Councillor Patrick McGinley reported a declaration 
of interest in agenda item 7, Churchfield House. The Chair had booked the venue 
previously for personal engagements and Councillor McGinley was a member of the 
volunteer committee at the house. 
 
There were no other reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

85 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 14th March 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

86 Appointment of Vice Chair 
 
With the meeting being the first Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 2019-
2020 Municipal year a Vice Chair was required to be appointed as this was not conducted 
at the Council AGM held in May earlier this year. 
 
Resolved - That Councillor Jean Battle be appointed Vice Chair of the  

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal 
Year 2019-2020. 

 
87 Appointment of Co-optees 

 

Page 49



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the Committee 
of the Co-optee appointments for Overview and Scrutiny Committees during the Municipal 
Year 2019-2020 made by Council at the AGM on the 16th May 2019. 
 
Resolved - (1) That the Committee noted the following reappointments of 

Co-optees to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
- Honorary Alderman Paul Barton 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 
- Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod 

 
- (2) That the Committee noted the following re-appointment of 
Co-optees to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 

 
- (3) That the Committee noted the previous appointment of 
Honorary Alderman Doug Hayes as Co-optee to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, which covers the 2019/20 Municipal year. 

 
- (4) That the Committee noted the amendment to Rule C2 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in the 
appendix to this report. 

 
- (5) That the Committee noted the appointment of Gareth 
Molineux as new Co-optee to the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
88 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to seek approval from Members of 
the Committee for the 2019-2020 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes and that the 
report was submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet in September 2019. 
 
The Chair added that at a recent Audit Committee meeting Members had suggested that 
better signposting of the HBC Dog Warden service was required on the Council’s website. 
Research on the subject would be conducted with a view to possible inclusion on the work 
programme should there be availability.  
 
Resolved - That the 2019-2020 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

work programme be approved and submitted to Cabinet.  
 

89 Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the Committee 
of the publication of new statutory guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in local government. 
 
Councillor Tim O’ Kane stated the importance of the selection process of Members serving 
on the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to be separate from the Cabinet.  
 
Resolved - That Members of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny  

Committee noted the update. 
 

90 Requests for Support for the Operational Management of Council Buildings 
 

Page 50



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to consider three individual requests 
from external organisations for financial support towards the continued operational 
management of Council buildings. 
 
Presentations were made from Gayle Knight (Hyndburn Arts Limited), Lynn Wilson 
(Churchfield House Ltd) and Nick Collingridge (Mercer House 1842). 
 
A number of questions were asked at the meeting to all three organisations following their 
presentations:- 
 

 How much money are you requesting? 

 How will this money be spent? 

 Why was this money not budgeted for? 

 Have you requested this funding from sources other than the Council? 

 What will the impact be if the Council do not provide funding? 

 When is this funding required by? 

 Is this a one off request? What plans do you have in place to ensure your financial 
sustainability? 

 How much money have you previously received from the Council since you took on 
the facility, and what was the money for? 

 Who are your current users? 

 Do you have a pricing policy for facility hire? Are you charging enough to ensure the 
sustainability of the building? 

 How much cash reserves / investments do you currently hold? (Please provide 
suitable evidence by way of Bank Statement, Letter from Bank etc) 

 How many paid staff does your organization have and what are the annual salary 
costs? 

 
A number of individual follow up questions were also put to each of the organisations 
represented at the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet be requested to note the following  

resolutions of the Committee:- 
 
(1) That Cabinet provided urgent funding of £30,000 to Hyndburn 
Arts Ltd towards the continued operation of Oswaldtwistle Civic 
Theatre and Arts Centre:- 

    
- Cabinet was also asked to consider providing some officer 
support to Hyndburn Arts Trust in terms of financial 
management in order to minimise the risk of the shortfall in 
funding occurring again in future years.  

   
-The Committee requests that Hyndburn Arts Ltd report back to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 12 months time. 

 
(2) That Cabinet provided urgent funding of £10,000 to  
Churchfield House Ltd to contribute towards the u 
nexpected water costs and application for charitable  
status:- 

 
- Cabinet was also asked to note that should Churchfield  
House Ltd manage to negotiate a reduction in challenging  
their water bill, the remaining balance would be returned  

Page 51



 
 
 

 

 
 

to the Council. 
 

(3) That Cabinet make further enquiries to determine the  
request from Mercer House 1842, due to insufficient  
financial and other background information provided to  
the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee which was  
requested in advance of the meeting. The Committee was  
therefore unable to make a recommendation for the  
request of £5,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 52



 

 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Wednesday, 31st July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Diane Fielding (Vice 

Chair), Joyce Plummer, Stewart Eaves, Terry Hurn and Addison 
 

Apologies Sara Britcliffe 

  

 
91 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Sara Britcliffe.  Councillor 
Judith Addison acted as substitute representative for Councillor Britcliffe. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

92 Minutes of Last Meeting of the 20th March 2019 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage) held on 20th March 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

93 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure and the Complaints Licensing Procedure to be followed 
at the meeting in relation to hackney carriage and private hire driver licences were 
submitted.  A copy had been sent to the applicant. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedures be noted. 
 
 

94 Guidance on Determining the Suitability of Applicants and Licensees in the Hackney 
and Private Hire Trades 
 
The Institute of Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades was 
submitted to assist Hyndburn Borough Council when determining the suitability of 
applicants and licensees in the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades.  A copy of the 
Guidance had been sent to the applicant. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidance be noted. 
 
 

95 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 

Page 53



 
 
 

 

 
2 

the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
 
 

96 Report Relating to a Licensed Private Hire Driver (AA) 
 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed private hire driver (AA).  A complaint had been lodged against the driver and this 
was set out in the report. 
 
The following documents were appended to the report:  three witness statements and a 
letter from Forbes Solicitors. 
 
Attention was drawn to the policy and guidelines for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
trades and the suitability of applicants and licensees.   
 
In accordance with licensing procedures, the driver (AA) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  The driver attended the meeting with an interpreter and his 
solicitor.   
 
The witnesses had also been invited to attend the meeting and one witness was present. 
 
The solicitor representing (AA) referred to the presence of the witness at the meeting.  He 
reported that as there was an ongoing insurance matter between the witness and his client, 
the witness should leave the meeting to prevent any prejudice to the matter.  He indicated 
that should the witness remain, his client (AA) would be unable to provide any details of the 
incident and would have to leave the meeting.  He requested that, for this reason, the 
witness should leave the meeting when his client was addressing members, or that the 
meeting be adjourned to a date after the insurance matter was resolved.   
 
The Chair considered the request of the Solicitor but determined: 

(a) That the Committee was not determining liability which was subject of the 
insurance matter but was determining whether there was any reasonable cause 
to suspend or revoke AA’s private hire driver’ licence, and these two issues were 
separate; 

(b) The Committee was under a duty to consider the complaint before them in the 
interest of public safety and an adjournment was not in the public interest; 

(c) The Committee should have the full facts before them; 
(d) AA was required to be truthful both to the meeting and to insurance company. 

 
And on these grounds the Chair held that the witness could be present throughout the 
meeting.   
  
The applicant and his representatives then left the meeting. 
 
The Committee continued to hear the case in their absence and went on to: 
 

(a) Determine whether the facts referred to in the complaint were substantially true; 

Page 54



 
 
 

 

 
3 

(b) Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts gave reasonable 
cause for the Committee to consider revoking or suspending AA’s private hire 
driver’s licence;  and  

(c) Determine what action, if any should be taken against the driver. 
 
Resolved - That, having given consideration to the report submitted 

by the Licensing Manager, and after hearing evidence 
from the complainant and having seen CCTV evidence 
of the incident, which gave rise to the complaint, the 
Committee considered that the driver’s behaviour had 
been inappropriate and fallen short of what was 
expected of licensed drivers in the Borough of 
Hyndburn.  The Committee determined that the driver’s 
licence be suspended for a period of 28 days pursuant 
to Section 61(1)(b) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, subject to the 
driver’s right to appeal.   

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 19 July 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Head of Member Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motion(s) for Debate at Council -  

1. Sky Lanterns 
2. Climate Emergency 
3. Jammu and Kashmir 
4. Brexit Preparedness 
5. Transport 
6. Wildflower Habitats 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: N/A 

 
Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council Procedure 
Rule A9:- 
 
1. Sky Lanterns 
 
Following correspondence sent to the Council Leader from the "End Sky Litter Campaign" this 
Council requests that the Cabinet considers a report on the issue of sky lanterns and balloons 
with a view to the possibility of a ban within the borough of Hyndburn on the release of both 
sky lanterns and balloons on all council owned land and property as well as the general 
discouragement of this practice through any measures that the Council are able to employ.   
 
At present, only 64 (of 354) councils within England have put a ban in place. A ban would 
help prevent the individual and mass release of sky lanterns and balloons on council land to 
prevent the unnecessary suffering to animals and the devastating impact they can have on 
the environment. It's estimated that 200,000 sky lanterns are sold in the UK each year, along 
with many thousands of balloons also being sold with a number of them intended for release. 
While these releases can look mesmerising, many people are unaware of the deadly 
consequences fallen lanterns and deflated balloons can have for animals and the 
environment.  
 
Wildlife can easily become entangled in lantern frames and balloon strings- not to mention the 
fatal effect these parts can have on an animal if they ingest any component of these items. 
Deflated and fragments of balloons are commonly mistaken for food by marine life, and the 
strings used to tether balloons have been known to cause animals to become entangled or 
choke and suffer from internal blockages which ultimately leads to their death.  
 
In March, a report was released stating that balloons are the highest-risk debris item to 
seabirds, they're 32 times more likely to result in death than ingesting hard plastic. 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8.



 

Both balloons and sky lanterns have the potential to travel miles from their original release 
site before returning back to land.  
 
The RSPCA and many other organisations including the Marine Conservation Society, the 
British Veterinary Association and the National Farmers Union all support the ban of balloon 
and sky lantern releases. 
 
Proposer: Cllr Jeff Scales 
Seconder: Cllr Kate Walsh 
 
Submitted on:12th August 2019 
 
2. Climate Emergency 
 
Council notes: That the impacts of climate breakdown are already causing serious damage 
around the world.  
 
That the ‘Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C’, published by the Intergovernmental 
Panel on Climate Change in October 2018, (a) describes the enormous harm that a 2°C 
average rise in global temperatures is likely to cause compared with a 1.5°C rise, and (b) 
confirms that limiting Global Warming to 1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action from 
national and sub-national authorities, civil society and the private sector. 
 
That all governments (national, regional and local) have a duty to act, and local governments 
that recognise this should not wait for their national governments to change their policies;  
 
That strong policies to cut emissions also have associated health, wellbeing and economic 
benefits; 
 
and that, recognising this, a growing number of UK local authorities have already passed 
'Climate Emergency' motions. 
 
Council therefore commits to: 
 
Declare a ‘Climate Emergency’ that requires urgent action. 
 
Make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon by 2030. 
 
Achieve 100% clean energy across the Council’s full range of functions by 2030. 
 
Ensure that all strategic decisions, budgets and approaches to planning decisions are in line 
with a shift to zero carbon by 2030. 
 
Support and work with all other relevant agencies towards making the entire area zero carbon 
within the same timescale; 
 
Ensure that political and chief officer leadership teams embed this work in all areas and take 
responsibility for reducing, as rapidly as possible, the carbon emissions resulting from the 
Council’s activities, ensuring that any recommendations are fully costed and that the 

Page 58



 

Executive and Scrutiny functions review council activities taking account of production and 
consumption emissions and produce an action plan within 12 months, together with budget 
actions and a measured baseline; 
 
Request that Council Scrutiny Panels consider the impact of climate change and the 
environment when reviewing Council policies and strategies; 
 
Work with, influence and inspire partners across the district, county and region to help deliver 
this goal through all relevant strategies, plans and shared resources by developing a series of 
meetings, events and partner workshops; 
 
Request that the Council and partners take steps to proactively include young people in the 
process, ensuring that they have a voice in shaping the future; 
 
Request that the Executive Portfolio holder with responsibility for Climate Change convenes a 
Citizens’ Assembly in 2019 in order to involve the wider population in this process. This group 
would help develop their own role, identify how the Council’s activities might be made net-
zero carbon by 2030, consider the latest climate science and expert advice on solutions and 
to consider systematically the climate change impact of each area of the Council’s activities; 
 
Set up a Climate Change Partnership group, involving Councillors, residents, young citizens, 
climate science and solutions experts, businesses, Citizens Assembly representatives and 
other relevant parties. Over the following 12 months, the Group will consider strategies and 
actions being developed by the Council and other partner organisations and develop a 
strategy in line with a target of net zero emissions by 2030. It will also recommend ways to 
maximise local benefits of these actions in other sectors such as employment, health, 
agriculture, transport and the economy 
 
Report on the level of investment in the fossil fuel industry that our pensions plan and other 
investments have, and review the Council’s investment strategy to give due consideration to 
climate change impacts in the investment portfolio; 
 
Ensure that all reports in preparation for the 2020/21 budget cycle and investment strategy 
will take into account the actions the council will take to address this emergency; 
 
Call on the UK Government to provide the powers, resources and help with funding to make 
this possible, and ask local MPs to do likewise; 
 
Consider other actions that could be implemented, including (but not restricted to): renewable 
energy generation and storage, providing electric vehicle infrastructure and encouraging 
alternatives to private car use, increasing the efficiency of buildings, in particular to address 
fuel poverty; proactively using local planning powers to accelerate the delivery of net carbon 
new developments and communities, coordinating a series of information and training events 
to raise awareness and share good practice; 
 
Proposer: Councillor Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Councillor Eamonn Higgins 
 
Submitted on 20th August 2019 

Page 59



 

 
3. Jammu and Kashmir 
 
Hyndburn Borough Council from the UK stand in solidarity with the people of Jammu and 
Kashmir after the decision made by the Indian Government to unilaterally revoke article 370 
and 35a from their constitution, which gave the state power to define permanent residents 
and their privileges. 
 
This Council puts on record that this is devastating and a death to democracy in Jammu and 
Kashmir. 
 
We are a multi cultural organisation here in Hyndburn Council and are proud to serve a range 
of diverse communities. The actions taken by the Indian Government directly affects many of 
our residents who have family and loved ones in Jammu and Kashmir. 
 
The internet and phones are down, we have media blackout and indefinite curfews to silence 
the people of Jammu and Kashmir which is a violation of human rights. 
 
This Council strongly condemns the Indian Government’s actions and asks that the Leader of 
Council along with our MPs write to Rt Hon Dominic Rabb MP - the Secretary of State of 
Foreign affairs, to raise this with the Indian Government and immediately seek for the right to 
self-determination for the people of Jammu and Kashmir and lift all reporting and 
communications restrictions applied on or after the 6th August 2019. 
 
We the Hyndburn Council ask that the Leader of the Council writes to the MEPs to raise this 
with the United Nations and European Parliament to seek a resolution for the right to self-
determination for the people of Jammu and Kashmir and to adopt United Nations resolution 
47, that allows this. 
 
We ask that they hold the Indian Government to account for the violation of human rights 
according to international law. 
 
Proposer: Cllr Munsif Dad JP BEM 
Seconder: Cllr Abdul Khan 
 
Submitted 2nd September 2019  
 
4. Brexit Preparedness 
 
That this Council is concerned about a lack of possible lack of medical resources in the event 
of a No Deal Brexit and urges the Government and the NHS locally to take all possible steps 
to mitigate the risks to the residents of Hyndburn, such as a lack of medication or shortage of 
staffing. 
 
Proposer: Cllr Tim O’Kane 
Seconder: Cllr Noordad Aziz 
 
Submitted on 2nd September 2019 
 

Page 60



 

5. Transport 
 
That this Council recognises the new All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) for Transport 
across the North. The Council resolves to write to the group to highlight the opportunities and 
challenges facing infrastructure in Hyndburn and East Lancashire and to emphasise the work 
that Members have done to highlight and to support infrastructure investment programmes for 
the following for the benefit of Hyndburn residents and businesses:  
 
1. Re-establishment of the Skipton to Colne Rail link for commuter and freight including 

looking at a freight terminal in East Lancashire. 
 
2. The M65 to link into Yorkshire and the A1(M). 
 
3. The Direct rail link from East Lancashire to Manchester Airport after the completion of the 

Ordsall curve. 
 
4. The increasing of capacity and upgrade on the A56 and M66 unlocking economic and 

social mobility of the whole of East Lancashire with better access to Manchester. 
 
5. Offer a solution to Accrington, being the most congested place outside of a city, to 

alleviate congestion and pollution pinch points around the borough especially the Whalley 
Road Junction at Clayton Le Moors. 

 
6. Look at the expansion of the Manchester Metrolink to the Rossendale valley and then into 

Hyndburn. 
 

Proposer: Cllr Noordad Aziz 
Seconder: Cllr Melissa Fisher 
 
Submitted on 4th September 2019 
 
6. Wildflower Habitats 
 
That Hyndburn Council look at ways in which wildflower habitats can be planted on roadside 
verges, roundabouts and disused land throughout the borough, that fall under their jurisdiction 
 
Proposer: Cllr Sara Britcliffe 
Seconder: Cllr Josh Allen 
 
Submitted on 11th September 2019 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	6. Minutes of Cabinet
	7. Minutes of Committees
	Licensing Sub minutes 03.07.19
	Planning Trees Sub Minutes 10.07.19
	Planning Minutes 10.07.19
	Comms & Wellbeing OSC Minutes 11.07.19
	Audit Minutes 29.07.19
	Resources OSC Minutes 30.07.19
	Judicial (PH & HC Licensing)

	8. Motion(s) submitted on Notice

